
Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

March 13, 2025 – 6:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Roll Call
B. Invocation – Council Member Jane Welch
C. Pledge of Allegiance – Mayor Mike Horn
D. Adoption of Agenda

2. Consent Agenda
A. Resolution 2025-009– Financial statements for seven months ended January 31, 2025 (Attachment #1)

B. Approval of Council Retreat minutes – January 31, 2025 and February 1, 2025 (Attachment #2)

C. Approval of Agenda Briefing minutes – February 6, 2025 (Attachment #3)

D. Approval of Regular Meeting minutes – February 13, 2025 (Attachment #4)

3. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
A. Presentations

i. I’m One of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place to Live
a. Barbara Campbell

ii. Sheriff’s Office

4. Public Forum
A. Residents should register with the Town Clerk and limit their comments to three (3) minutes.
B. Written comments are also available.

5. Oath of Office
A. Tom Lawson – Council Member

6. Appointments
A. Boards

i. Planning (Appoint 4)
ii. Willow Run Municipal Service District

a. Area 3 (Appoint 1)
b. At-large (Appoint 1)

iii. Zoning Board of Adjustment (Appoint 1)
B. Committees

i. Parks & Recreation (Appoint 1)
ii. Public Art (Appoint 7)



 

 

7. New Business  
A. Resolution 2025-010 – 2024-2025 Audit services contract with Gibson & Company, PA (Attachment #5) 
B. Ordinance 2025-007 – Amending Public Art Advisory Committee Charter (Attachment #6) 
C. Council committee appointments 

i. Piedmont Triad Regional Council (PTRC) Alternate 
a. Ivan Huffman 

ii. Special Projects Review Committee  
a. Melissa Hunt 

 
8. Administrative Reports 

A. Upcoming events and closings 
i. Jack Warren Park Dedication, March 22, 9-11 AM 

ii. Creek Week, March 22-31 
iii. Clean Sweep, March 29 
iv. Resident survey deadline, March 31 
v. Earth Day, April 12, 9 AM-2 PM 

B. Approvals at the Briefing and Action Meeting on February 6, 2025  
i. Council accepted resignation of Council Member Julia Puckett 

C. Approvals at the Briefing and Action Meeting on March 6, 2025  
i. Council appointed Tom Lawson to the unexpired Council seat of Julia Puckett 

 
9. For the Good of the Order 

A. Public Comments 
i. Residents should limit their comments to three (3) minutes. 

ii. Written comment forms are also available.  
B. Council Comments 
 

10. Adjournment 
 



DRAFT

Attachment #1



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



Lewisville Town Council 
Council Retreat Minutes 

January 31, 2025 – 6:00 PM 
February 1, 2025 – 9:00 AM 

Mary Alice Warren Community Center – Magnolia Room 
1. Call to Order

A. Mayor Horn opened the Council retreat at 6:00 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor
Pro Tem Melissa Hunt and Council Members Ivan Huffman, Monte Long, and Jane Welch.  Also
attending were Town Manager Stacy Tolbert, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Public Works Director
Jon Hanna, Planning Director Lynn Cochran and Town Clerk Dora Moore. Council Members Julie
Puckett and Ken Sadler were absent.

B. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Huffman moved to approve the agenda. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Long and approved unanimously.

Mayor Horn stated the retreat will focus on a long-term philosophy approach encouraging big thinking. 

2. State of the Town – Manager Tolbert reviewed the Town’s 2024 accomplishments, endeavors,
projects, and more. The 2025 retreat will feed the 2025-2026 budget and provided a task list for the
year. (Presentation is attached as part of the minutes.)

3. Compensation & Pay Study presentation – Erika Phillips, The Maps Group, shared the recent pay and
classification study stressing the study was based upon job titles, not individuals. The goal of the study
is to ensure the Town is competitive in pay and benefits. Ideally, a study should be done every five
years. The market survey focuses on organizations the Town does or could be losing and/or recruiting
from, comparable in size, offering similar services and within a one-hour commute. Organizations
used for the survey were: Archdale, Clemmons, Eden, Elon, Forsyth County, Hillsborough, Kernersville,
King, Mount Airy, Reidsville and Winston-Salem. Four of the Town’s classifications are competitive
and ten classifications are below average. Next steps for the process include review of job descriptions
and personnel policy and a benefit survey.

Break 7:24 PM to 7:36 PM. 

Council discussed the need to retain employees and ability to recruit when needed. It was noted every 
year looks different in terms of staffing and the Town currently has four employees who could retire. 
Competitive pay, professional development, a sense of equality and adding value, and a pleasant work 
environment were listed as important for retention. (Presentation is attached as part of the minutes.) 

4. Lewisville Fire Department informational report – Manager Tolbert shared information related to
discussions with the Lewisville Fire Department. (Presentation is attached as part of the minutes.)

5. For the Good of the Order
- Staff and the Shallow Ford Foundation have talked about the 2025 Holiday Open House. Past open

houses, have not produced donations for the Shallow Ford Foundation so a separate event with
presale tickets may be more beneficial. After some discussion by Council, it was recommended
the Town budget funding for the Shallow Ford Foundation to provide programming on the Town’s
behalf instead of holding a ticketed event. This will be discussed in more detail during budget
work sessions. The Town will continue to hold a Holiday Open House at Mary Alice Warren
Community Center prior to the Christmas Tree Lighting.

- Council Member Puckett has submitted her resignation from Council. This will be discussed and
accepted at the February agenda briefing.

DRAFT

Attachment #2



January 31 & February 1, 2025 

6. Recess – Council Member Huffman moved to recess the meeting at 9:22 PM and to reconvene at 9:00
AM on February 1, 2025. Mayor Pro Tem Hunt seconded the motion and motion passed unanimously.

7. Call to Order – In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro Tem Melissa Hunt and Council
Members Ivan Huffman, Monte Long, and Jane Welch.  Also attending were Town Manager Stacy
Tolbert, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Public Works Director Jon Hanna, Planning Director Lynn
Cochran and Town Clerk Dora Moore. Council Members Julie Puckett and Ken Sadler were absent.

8. Boards & Committees
- Clerk Moore provided an overview of the Town’s boards and committees and their

accomplishments over the past year. (Presentation is attached as part of the minutes.)

- Beautification Committee – Chair Christi Ritter touted the knowledge and dedication of the
committee’s members who work primarily in Jack Warren Park. The age of current committee
members is a concern. Over the years, the committee has assisted the Town with the selection of
trees along Shallowford Road and the memorial trees in Jack Warren Park.

- Environmental Conservation and Sustainability Committee (ECSC) – Chair Kay Smitherman
thanked Council and staff for their support of the Earth Day and special recycling events.

- Parks & Recreation Committee – Chair Aaron Hutmacher shared the committee’s desire to serve
the Council, staff and community as needed. The committee’s current tasks are working with staff
on the upcoming Jack Warren Park improvements dedication ceremony and the Shallowford
Square playground relocation.

- Public Art Advisory Committee – Chair Barbara Campbell expressed excitement in the Town
embracing art in Lewisville noting art brings people together in a nonpolitical manner. She noted
with the art shows, the Town has been able to build an artist database. The committee inquired
direction from Council on the Council’s vision of where and what type of art is wanted. Grant
matches are appreciated but the committee believes the Town will need to budget funds to fulfil
their vision. Ms. Campbell further requested Council consider an assessment set aside by builders
to go towards public art. She also expressed the committee’s desire not to have to raise funds for
projects. Manager Tolbert noted staff and the committee are trying to look outside the box in
terms of fundraising.

- Council consensus was given that board and committee applicant interviews continue to be done
by staff and committee chairs, when available.

- Council consensus was to see committee chairs at least annually. Committee chairs and members
were also encouraged to attend meetings when their requests are presented to Council.

Break 10:31 AM to 10:49 AM. 

9. Resolution 2023-051 – Clean Renewable Energy – Mr. Hanna reported the Town has done a few
things to attain goals of Resolution 2023-051: solar panels on Mary Alice Warren Community Center,
electric vehicle charging stations at Shallowford Square, LED lights where feasible and bottle filler at
Shallowford Square. Currently, ECSC is researching energy use at all Town buildings. What are next
steps? Some ideas to meet the goals include integrating renewable goals in the new public works
building (former post office), Duke Energy programs, use of green contractors, purchase recyclable
products and educate residents on energy usage. Also, ECSC is being encouraged to think beyond
recycling.

DRAFT



January 31 & February 1, 2025 

10. Infrastructure discussion
A. Stormwater – Mr. Hanna shared information about stormwater including what it is, it’s impact,

Town’s management requirements, Town’s stormwater infrastructures and funding. A lot of the
Town’s stormwater management is done in house, in partnership with Piedmont Triad Regional
Council and through a contractor. Areas not regulated, aging infrastructure and increased loads
impact the Town’s stormwater. Mr. Hanna stated bad stormwater can directly lead to bad roads.
The need for a stormwater technician, which could limit the Town’s need for contractors, was
discussed. Staff was requested to research stormwater impact fees. (Presentation is attached as part 

of the minutes.)

Break 12:11 PM to 12:33 PM. 

B. Paving – A pavement study was done in 2020 and staff would like to schedule one in 2025-2026.
Since 2020, the Town really has not been meeting paving needs. Mr. Hanna suggested the Town
consider a pavement preservation program which is a similar concept as vehicle maintenance –
spend money along the way to prevent spending a lot at one time. He stated many streets and
stormwater infrastructures are meeting end of life, which is forty years. Wise stewardship of funds
is important which was the intention of the recent crack sealing project. (Presentation is attached as 

part of the minutes.)

With the infrastructure and project needs, Council noted this may be a season of retention. 
Council discussed in depth the revaluation process, fund balance and reserves.  

Break 1:19 PM to 1:27 PM. 

11. Future use of Town properties
- Shallowford Road Moser property – This property fronts both Shallowford Road and the Great

Wagon Road and was donated with request for it to serve a public purpose. Numerous ideas of
making this a connector park with potential art, historical information, benches, etc. was
discussed. Council consensus was to retain the property.

- Great Wagon Road/North Street properties – These two properties have deed restrictions.
Council consensus was to consider selling these properties and explore removal of deed
restrictions.

- Lewisville-Vienna Road Moser property – Council discussed potential uses for the property noting
the terrain. Council consensus was to attain an appraisal.

- Lewisville-Vienna/Robinhood Roads properties – Council consensus was to demolish the building
and retain the properties. 
(Presentation is attached as part of the minutes.) 

12. Projects – Manager Tolbert provided an overview of current town projects including Jack Warren
Park/PARTF, Great Wagon Road, Lewisville-Vienna Road roundabout and Lake Marblehead Dam.
Council noted that once these projects are done, the Town will need to focus on infrastructure.

DRAFT



January 31 & February 1, 2025 

13. Adjournment – Having no other business to discuss, Council Member Huffman moved to adjourn the
meeting at 2:42 PM.  Council Member Welch seconded the motion and motion passed unanimously.

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

__________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

DRAFT



February 6, 2025 

Lewisville Town Council 
Briefing and Action Meeting Minutes 

February 6, 2025 – 6:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 2nd Floor Conference Room 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:00 PM. In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Melissa Hunt and Council Members Ivan Huffman, Monte Long and Jane Welch.  Also
attending were Town Manager Stacy Tolbert, Town Clerk Dora Moore, Finance Director Pam
Orrell, Public Works Director Jon Hanna, Planning Director Lynn Cochran and Town Attorney Elliot
Fus. Council Member Julia Puckett was absent.

B. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Huffman moved to approve the agenda. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Long and approved unanimously.

2. Items Requiring Council Direction
A. MAWCC Mural proposal – Clerk Moore reported the Public Art Advisory Committee received five

submissions for the Mary Alice Warren Community Center mural project and shared the
committee’s proposal. The mural is funded by a $2,500 grant from the Shallowford Foundation.
The recommended piece was by Missy Pardue of Yadkinville. The proposal is a river table style
wood panel with blue epoxy resin flowing through the middle, use of acrylic paint for the images.
The whole piece would not be covered in paint to showcase the natural wood and represent
nature. To make it durable, the entire piece weighing 125-150 pounds will be sealed in epoxy.
Proper mounting of the system is the Town’s only expense. Council consensus was to approve the
proposal with request that the wine glass be replaced with a wagon or the Roller Mill.

B. Shallowford Square Art proposal – Clerk Moore reported the Public Art Advisory Committee also
received five submissions for the Shallowford Square art project and shared the committee’s
proposal. The art piece is funded by a $5,000 matching grant from the Shallowford Foundation
and $5,000 from the Town. The piece chosen by the committee was designed by local residents,
Paul & Patricia Spainhour. Depicting the Shallow Ford, the piece is a welded, hot rolled carbon
steel with a forged/gun metal patina. The piece weights 550-600 pounds and is 3” thick front to
back. The Spainhours would transport the piece to Shallowford Square and the Town is
responsible for all permits, underground utility locations and installation. Council expressed
concern about the safety of the edges and corner with the piece being near a playground initially.

Attachment #3



February 6, 2025 

Staff will work with the artists on the design and safety concerns. Council consensus was to accept 
the proposal and for staff to determine the Town’s costs associated with the project. 

One of the artists who submitted work for consideration was Bill Brown from Linville Falls, NC. 
Mr. Brown has an existing piece, Bridge in Balance, that he offered at a reduced rate of $10,000. 
Albeit beautiful, the piece did not work for the Shallowford Square location. During the proposal 
process, staff learned public art is permitted in roundabouts upon application to North Carolina 
Department of Transportation (NCDOT). The committee also learned Cliff Lewis who donated the 
outdoor pieces at MAWCC is willing to purchase Bridge in Balance if it is placed in a roundabout. 
Council requested the cost for installation, permits, landscaping, lighting, etc. be determined 
before committing. 

Council Member Sadler joined the meeting remotely at 6:35 PM. 



February 6, 2025 

C. Jack Warren Park Amphitheater dedication and park improvements ribbon cutting – A dedication
and ribbon cutting ceremony for the PARTF Jack Warren Park improvements will be held March
22, 9-11 AM. The short program will include light refreshments, disc golf demonstrations and
nature trail tours. Parks & Recreation Committee will work with staff on this event.

D. Facility use exemption process update – Clerk Moore shared proposed wording to have facility
use exemption requests reviewed by the Council’s Special Projects Review Committee. The
committee currently reviews nonprofit grant funding requests. The proposal includes combining
both requests into one application. Council consensus was given to move forward with the
proposed process.

3. Items Requiring Action at Briefing
A. Resignation of Council Member Julia Puckett – Mayor Horn shared Council Member Julia Puckett

submitted her resignation from Town Council effective January 31, 2025. A subcommittee of
Mayor Horn, Mayor Pro Tem Hunt and Council Member Huffman will collect suggested names for
her replacemetn and make a recommendation to Council.

Council Member Welch moved to accept the resignation of Council Member Julia Puckett. Motion 
was seconded by Council Member Long and passed unanimously.  

4. Administrative Reports
A. Town Manager

i. Town survey – Mayor Horn, Mayor Pro Tem Hunt and Council Member Welch will work with
staff on the Town survey.

B. Clerk
i. Winter Art Show February 7, 4:30-6:30 PM, MAWCC

a. Council discussed the option of allowing artists to sell their pieces during the show.
ii. CPR class February 8, 8 AM- Noon

iii. Blood Drive February 12, 1-5:30 PM
C. Public Works Director

i. Paving update – Crack sealing in Sequoia, Arbor Run and Oak Grove areas is underway. Mr.
Hanna shared he is developing a paving bids list.

ii. Tree replacement update – Tree replacements in the Ridgecrest subdivision begins next week.
D. Planning Director – Mr. Cochran has begun receiving the final UDO drafts for review. When ready

for Council direction, Mr. Cochran will provide summaries of the items to Council.

5. Tentative Agenda Items for Regular Meeting on February 13, 2025
A. Consent Agenda

i. Resolution 2025-006– Financial statements for six months ended December 31, 2024
a. Ms. Orrell reported sales tax revenue has flattened and ABC revenues are below budget

projections.
ii. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – January 2, 2025
iii. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – January 9, 2025

B. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
i. Presentations

a. Forsyth County Revaluation – John Burgiss, Forsyth County Tax Collector/Assessor
b. Sheriff’s Office

1. Introduction of new officer



February 6, 2025 

C. Public Hearing
i. Rezoning – L-111 – 7505 Franklin Road

a. Staff presentation
b. Public hearing
c. Council discussion
d. Council consideration – Ordinance 2025-002 – Change zoning from PB-C to RS-20 – 7505

Franklin Road
1. Formerly, a small business operated on the property. Since there is no longer a

business at this location, the property owner has requested the rezoning which is a
downzoning.

ii. Rezoning – L-112 – 7035 Franklin Road
a. Staff presentation
b. Public hearing
c. Council discussion
d. Council consideration – Ordinance 2025-003 – Change zoning from RS-20 and GI to IP –

7035 Franklin Road
1. Temple Baptist Church owns this property and is requesting a zoning cleanup of their

properties.
D. Old Business
E. New Business

i. Ordinance 2025-004 – Amending the charter of the Town of Lewisville to implement four-
year staggered terms for members of the Town Council – This ordinance is the final step in
implementing four-year staggered terms for council members, upon voter approval. The
mayoral seat would remain a two-year term.

ii. Resolution 2025-007 – Calling a special election of the purpose of submitting to a vote an
ordinance implementing four-year staggered terms for the members of the Town Council – In
order for the four-year staggered term to go to the residents for a vote, Council must call for
a special election. The proposed resolution also shows the ballot wording.

iii. Ordinance 2025-005 – Amending Budget Ordinance 2024-001 Snow and ice removal

6. For the Good of the Order
A. Mayor Pro Tem Hunt inquired about dating documents on the website so when searched,

individuals know the document age.
B. Mayor Horn shared a request from the Civic Club to once again utilize the Council Chambers for a

candidate forum in October. As a legacy use, Council consensus was given but noted that space
may be an issue depending on the number of candidates.

C. Mayor Horn thanked staff for the recent Council Retreat noting staff is thinking ahead of Council.
D. Attorney Fuss will not be at the regular meeting. Attorney Amy Lanning will attend in his absence.

7. Adjournment – Council Member Long moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:32 PM.  The motion was
seconded by Council Member Huffman and approved unanimously.

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor  

____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

February 13, 2025 – 6:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall Council Chambers 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:00 PM. In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Melissa Hunt, and Council Members Ivan Huffman, Monte Long, Ken Sadler and Jane Welch.
Also attending were Town Manager Stacy Tolbert, Town Clerk Dora Moore, Finance Director Pam
Orrell, Public Works Director Jon Hanna, Planning Director Lynn Cochran, Communications
Specialist Veronica Leasure and Attorney Amy Lanning.

B. Invocation – Council Member Monte Long
C. Pledge of Allegiance – Council Member Ken Sadler
D. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Huffman moved to approve the agenda. The motion was

seconded by Council Member Long and approved unanimously.

2. Consent Agenda
A. Resolution 2025-006– Financial statements for six months ended December 31, 2024
B. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – January 2, 2025
C. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – January 9, 2025

Council Member Welch moved to approve the consent agenda items. The motion was seconded by 
Council Member Sadler and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2025-006 is herein incorporated by reference 

into the minutes.) 

3. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
A. Presentations

i. Forsyth County Revaluation – John Burgiss, Forsyth County Tax Collector/Assessor – Mr. Burgiss
shared information related to revaluation process and the recent revaluation. (Presentation is 

incorporated into the minutes.)

ii. Sheriff’s Office – Sergeant Stringer shared recent call information. He thanked Council for AED
untits in all officer vehicles noting one officer had to use it recently on a call. Sergeant Stringer
then introduced Caleb Gray as the Town’s newest officer.

4. Public Forum – No one spoke

Attachment #4



5. Public Hearing
A. Rezoning – L-111 – 7505 Franklin Road

i. Staff presentation - Mr. Cochran stated the property owner is requesting a downzoning due
to no longer operating a business on the property. The Planning Board unanimously
recommended approval of the request. Staff recommends approval based upon consistency.
(Presentation is incorporated into the minutes.)

ii. Public Hearing – No comments
iii. Council discussion – None
iv. Council consideration – Ordinance 2025-002 – Change zoning from PB-C to RS-20 – 7505

Franklin Road – Mayor Pro Tem Hunt moved to approve Ordinance 2025-002 approving the
request based upon the consistency & reasonable determination statements that are
included with the agenda packet and as may be amended. The motion was seconded by
Council Member Welch and motion passed unanimously. (Ordinance 2025-002 is herein incorporated 

by reference into the minutes.)

B. Rezoning – L-112 – 7035 Franklin Road
i. Staff presentation - Mr. Cochran stated the property owner, Temple Baptist, is requesting the

rezoning of their properties for uniformity. The Planning Board unanimously recommended
approval of the request. Staff recommends approval based upon consistency. (Presentation is 

incorporated into the minutes.)

ii. Public Hearing – No comments
iii. Council discussion – None
iv. Council consideration – Ordinance 2025-003 – Change zoning from RS-20 and GI to IP – 7035

Franklin Road – Council Member Long moved to approve Ordinance 2025-003 approving the
request based upon the consistency & reasonable determination statements that are
included with the agenda packet and as may be amended. The motion was seconded by
Council Member Huffman and motion passed unanimously. (Ordinance 2025-003 is herein

incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

6. New Business
A. Ordinance 2025-004 – Amending the charter of the Town of Lewisville to implement four-year

staggered terms for members of the Town Council – Clerk Moore reported this is the final step to
amend the Lewisville Town Charter to implement four-year staggered terms for council members
contingent upon voter approval during the November 2025 municipal election. The mayoral seat
would remain two-years. The implementation process is as follows:

Four-year staggered terms shall be implemented as follows: 
a. At the regular municipal election to be held in 2027, candidates for three Council seats

receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected to serve for four-year terms. The
three candidates for Council seats who receive the next highest number of votes shall be
elected to serve for two-year terms.

b. At the regular municipal election to be held in 2029, and every four years thereafter, three
Council Members will be elected to serve for four-year terms.

c. At the regular municipal election to be held in 2031, and every four years thereafter, three
Council Members shall be elected to serve for four-year terms.

d. The mayoral seat will remain a two-year term.

Council Member Huffman moved to approve Ordinance 2025-004. The motion was seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem Hunt. Mayor Horn, Mayor Pro Tem Hunt, and Council Members Huffman and Long 
voted in favor. Council Members Sadler and Welch voted in opposition. Motion passed 4-2. 
(Ordinance 2025-004 herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.) 



B. Resolution 2025-007 – Calling a special election for the purpose of submitting to a vote an
ordinance implementing four-year staggered terms for the members of the Town Council – With
the approval of Ordinance 2025-004, Council must call for a special election for the vote on
implementing four-year staggered terms for council members. Although this vote will be held at
the same time as the November 2025 municipal election, General Statutes refers to it as a special
election. The resolution also outlines the ballot wording. Council Member Huffman moved to
approve Resolution 2025-007. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Hunt and motion
passed unanimously.  (Resolution 2025-007 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

C. Ordinance 2025-005 – Amending Budget Ordinance 2024-001 – Snow and ice removal - $47,550
– Mayor Pro Tem Hunt moved to approve Ordinance 2025-005. The motion was seconded by
Council Member Long and motion passed unanimously. (Ordinance 2025-004 is herein incorporated by 

reference into the minutes.) 
D. Resolution 2025-008 – Special Projects Review Committee - Revised – The proposed changes to

the Special Projects Review Committee’s responsibilities includes the review of facility use
exemption requests in addition to nonprofit project requests. The facility use exemption request
and nonprofit funding request applications have been combined into one document. Council
Member Welch moved to approve Resolution 2025-008. The motion was seconded by Council
Member Huffman and motion passed unanimously. (Resolution 2025-008 is herein incorporated by 

reference into the minutes.)

E. Ordinance 2025-006 – Amending Chapter 16 – Facility Use Exemptions – With the review of facility
use exemption requests tasked to the Special Projects Review Committee, Chapter 16 of the Town
Code needs to be amended to reflect same. Council Member Welch moved to approve Ordinance
2025-006. The motion was seconded by Council Member Huffman and motion passed
unanimously. (Ordinance 2025-006 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

7. Administrative Reports
A. Upcoming events and closings

i. Jack Warren Park PARTF ribbon cutting and dedication event – March 22, 9-11 AM
ii. Resident survey will be open March 2025

B. Approvals at the Briefing and Action Meeting on February 6, 2025
i. Council approved proposed Mary Alice Warren Community Center mural.

ii. Council approved proposed Shallowford Square art.

8. For the Good of the Order
A. Public comments
B. Council comments

9. Adjournment – Council Member Long moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:08 PM. The motion was
seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Hunt and motion passed unanimously.

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: RESOLUTION 2025-010 

SUBJECT: CONTRACT WITH GIBSON & COMPANY, P.A. FOR AUDIT 
SERVICES 

PREPARED BY: PAM ORRELL, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

DATE SUBMITTED: 3/6/2025 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The Town of Lewisville issued a “Request for Proposals” or “RFP” for audit services for the fiscal year 

2022-2023. In addition to the 2022-2023 fiscal year, we requested estimates for fiscal years 2023-2024 

and 2024-2025 as well. Gibson & Company, P.A. was the winning bidder. The audit contract for the fiscal 

year ended June 30, 2025 is attached to this staff report and requires council approval.  

The fee for the audit in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards (GAGAS) is $22,010. If 

expenditures of federal funds exceed $750,000 and/or if expenditures of State funds exceed $500,000, 

then a single audit will be required. The fee for the first major program will be $4,000 and the fee for 

each major program beyond that will be $2,500 per major program. In the event that the sum of all 

federal and State expenditures exceeds $4,000,000, then there will be an additional fee of $1,000 per 

each additional $1,000,000 in excess. Based on the amount of federal and State funds spent so far this 

year, we anticipate a single audit for federal and State purposes. The number of major programs that 

will require a single audit is unknown at this time, but could be as many as four programs. The audit 

contract presented by Gibson & Company specifies a fee not to exceed $33,510. This fee will cover the 

base GAGAS audit plus a single audit of 4 major programs. In the event, that there are fewer than 4 

major programs, then the fee will be reduced to actual. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

Staff is requesting that Council approve Resolution 2025-010 to approve the contract with Gibson & 
Company, P.A. to provide audit services for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025 with a fee not to exceed 
$33,510. 

Attachment #5



I:\TOWN COUNCIL\AGENDAS\2025 Agendas\03-2025 Agendas\03-06-2025 briefing\Staff Report-Gibson  Company 2024-2025 Audit.docx 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

See Background/Summary Section above. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

(1) Contract with Gibson & Company, P.A.

(2) Resolution 2025-010 approving the audit contract with Gibson & Company, P.A. for FY 2024-2025
audit services.



RESOLUTION 2025-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING CONTRACT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 AUDIT SERVICES 

WHEREAS, Gibson & Company, P.A. has provided auditing services since 2001; and 

WHEREAS, Gibson & Company, P.A. has submitted its contract and engagement letter for 
services for the annual independent audit of the Town for Fiscal Year 2024-2025; and 

WHEREAS, the audit is a budgeted line item; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of the audit is greater than $10,000.00 (ten thousand dollars) and requires 
formal approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves the 
contract for the firm of Gibson & Company, P.A. to perform the annual independent audit of the 
Town’s financial statement for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 for a fee not to exceed $33,510. 

Adopted this the 13th day of March 2025 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 









































ORDINANCE 2025-007 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 13-2 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE 

ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

WHEREAS, there is a desire to showcase public art within the Town of Lewisville; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council recognizes the value of resident inclusion. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL establishes a Public Art 
Advisory Committee. 

1. Committee Name – Public Art Advisory Committee (herein referred to as “Committee”).

2. Committee Type – The Committee will serve in an advisory role to Town Council.

3. Mission – The Committee may suggest and recommend actions pertaining to the acquisition, loan,
placement, maintenance, display, and/or disposal of the Town’s public artworks. The Committee
shall consult with and advise Town staff and Town Council in matters affecting public art policies,
resources, and acquisitions related to the total Town public arts program.

4. Public Art Definition
a. Photography, paintings, sculptures, murals, pottery, ceramics, tapestry, fabric, and other

media.
b. Visually and physically accessible to community.
c. Indoor or outdoor.
d. Temporary or permanent.

5. Department Funding
a. The Committee shall coordinate an annual budget, if needed, with the Town Manager by

February 28 for approval by Town Council.
b. Expenditures must follow the Town’s financial procedures.

6. Membership
a. The Committee shall be comprised of seven (7) members, effective with 2025 appointments.

Five of the members should have an art background. Examples of art professionals include,
but are not limited to: visual arts, art nonprofit workers, design professionals, art educators,
architects, art collectors, artists, craftsperson, and other professions in visual arts. Two of the
members do not need an art background.

b. Members are appointed by Town Council. Residents interested in serving on the Committee
shall submit a Public Art Advisory Committee application form to the Town Clerk requesting
appointment. The Town Clerk forwards information to Council.

c. Members serve without compensation.

Attachment #6



ORDINANCE 2025-007 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 13-2 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE 

ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 

 
 

7. Terms of Appointment 
a. Appointments shall be made by the Town Council in March. Terms are two years commencing 

April 1 and expiring on March 31. Terms are renewable without limitation to the number of 
consecutive terms. 

b. Effective with 2025 appointments, terms shall be staggered. Four members (three artists and 
one non-artist) will be appointed to a two-year term and three members (two artists and one 
non-artist) will be appointed to a three-year term. Upon term expiration, all members will be 
appointed to two-year terms. 

c.b. Members who wish to resign their appointment shall submit their resignation to the Town 
Clerk who shall provide to Town Council for their acceptance. Vacancies on the Committee 
shall be filled for the unexpired term by Town Council. 

 
8. Committee Structure 

a. Chair 
i. The Committee shall select from among themselves a Chair. 
ii. The Chair shall serve for one (1) yeartwo (2) years with eligibility of reelection. 

iii. The Chair shall be selected at the next scheduled committee meeting April 1 or later, 
following March appointments. 

 
b. Vice Chair 

i. The Committee shall select from among themselves a Vice Chair. 
ii. The Vice Chair shall serve for one (1) yeartwo (2) years with eligibility of reelection. 

iii. The Vice Chair shall be selected at the next scheduled committee meeting April 1 or later, 
following March appointments. 

9. Meetings 
a. The Committee shall establish its own regular meeting schedule. Schedule to be provided to 

the Town Clerk for appropriate filing and posting. 
b. The Committee shall meet as needed. 
c. All Committee meetings are subject to the North Carolina Open Meetings Law. 
d. Minutes of all meetings shall be maintained in accordance with public records laws and 

regulations with approved Committee meeting minutes submitted to the Town Clerk for 
appropriate filing and posting. 

e. Four (4) members, one of which must be the Chair or Vice Chair, constitute a quorum. 
f. The Committee shall have a meeting attendance policy such that members failing to attend 

three (3) consecutive regular Committee meetings, without notification to the Chair or Town 
Clerk, shall have their membership subject to review and possible replacement by the Town 
Council. 

 
10. Reports – The Committee Chair shall submit a report of its activities and other important matters 

to the Town Council upon request. 



ORDINANCE 2025-007 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 13-2 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE 

ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 

 
 

11. Requests – All official requests should be in writing from the Committee Chair and must be 
presented to the Town Manager. 

 
 

Amended and adopted this the 13th day of March 2025. 
 
 
 

 

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 


	03-13-2025 Agenda
	01 - 2025-009 - Res - Financial - Jan 31, 2025
	02 - 01-31-2025 Council Retreat Minutes
	03 - 02-06-2025 TC Briefing Minutes
	04 - 02-13-2025 TC Meeting Minutes
	Staff Report-Gibson  Company 2024-2025 Audit
	05 - 2025-010 - Res - 2023-2024 Audit Contract
	2025 Audit Contract
	06 - 2025-007 - Ord - Public_Art_Charter-Ordinance - Remove Staggered Terms



